POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date:

Tuesday, 26th February, 2019

Time:

7.30 pm

Venue:

Guildhall

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Information for Members of the Public
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street. The nearest car park is
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access
to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the
Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking
space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which
can be reached by using a lift. If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to
attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make
any necessary arrangements to assist your visit.
Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You have the right to inspect copies of
Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II
of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that
the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to
public inspection.
Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report
on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and
providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the
proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the
attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to
attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and
for any footage to be broadcast or published.
Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are
published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted
in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council
he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to
the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend
recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if
they consider that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any
statutory provision.
At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the
Agenda. Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day
before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below.
If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background
papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs,
film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services
Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY. Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); EMail Address: committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk.
This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic
minority languages. Please contact the above named officer for further information.
Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available
electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address:
worcester.gov.uk

2

Policy and Resources Committee
Tuesday, 26 February 2019
Members of the Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Louis Stephen (G)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Marc Bayliss (C) and Councillor Adrian Gregson (L)
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Patricia Agar (LCo)
Roger Berry (LCo)
Lynn Denham (L)
Simon Geraghty (C)
Jo Hodges (L)

C= Conservative

G = Green

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
L = Labour

Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C)
Roger Knight (C)
Chris Mitchell (C)
Joy Squires (L)
James Stanley (C)

LCo = Labour and Co-Operative

AGENDA
Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)
1.

Appointment of Substitutes

To receive details of any Member
nominated to attend the meeting in place of
a Member of the Committee.

2.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest.

3.

Public Representations

Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be
allowed, with each speaker being allocated
a maximum of five minutes, for members
of the public to present a petition, ask a
question or comment on any matter on the
Agenda or within the remit of the
Committee.

4.

Property Development Financing
Page(s): 1 - 6
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Shane Flynn,
Corporate
Director, Finance
and Resources
Tel: 01905
722536

To revise the overall limit on the Property
Development Fund to £30m to allow for
approval of suitable schemes.

3

5.

Items Involving the Disclosure of
Exempt Information

The Committee are invited to pass the
following resolution:That under Section 100A(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the meeting for the
following items of business on the grounds
that they involve the likely disclosure of
information as defined in Schedule 12A of
the said Act.

PART II
(ITEM FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE)
6.

7.

Development Fund Proposal
Page(s): 7 - 16
Ward(s): Warndon Parish South
Contact Officer:
Shane Flynn,
Corporate
Director, Finance
and Resources
Tel: 01905
722536

1. To agree to proceed to purchase of a
site, subject to satisfactory completion
of all surveys and due diligence; and

Development Fund Proposal
Page(s): 17 - 60
Ward(s): Cathedral
Contact Officer:
Shane Flynn,
Corporate
Director, Finance
and Resources
Tel: 01905
722536

1. To agree to proceed to purchase of a
site, subject to satisfactory completion
of all surveys and due diligence; and

2. To delegate to the Corporate Director –
Finance and Resources and the Deputy
Director – Governance authority to
conclude the purchase in consultation
with the Chair and Vice-Chairs of the
Committee.

2. To delegate to the Corporate Director –
Finance and Resources and the Deputy
Director – Governance authority to
conclude the purchase in consultation
with the Chair and Vice-Chairs of the
Committee.

4

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

Report to: Policy and Resources Committee, 26th February 2019
Report of: Corporate Director - Finance and Resources

Subject:

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT FINANCING

1.

Recommendation

1.1

To revise the overall limit on the Property Development Fund to £30m to
allow for approval of suitable schemes.

2.

Background

2.1

In February 2018 the Council adopted a Commercial Strategy. The strategy is
designed to support the Council to manage the transition from a funding regime
based substantially on central government grants to one in which the Council is
entirely dependent on its own resources. However, the strategy also recognises that
a commercial approach supports progressive policy-making. Underpinning the City
Plan is a commitment to improving Worcester as a destination and as a place to live,
work and spend leisure time. By providing services that are self-sustaining and by
generating income in excess of immediate need, the Council can build capacity for
regeneration and increase service delivery to target groups.

2.2

As part of this approach the Council’s Cabinet, in October 2016, approved a proposal
which combined the need to establish income streams and the need to procure
property and assets for development through:
“better utilisation of our asset base either as a stand alone or through partnership
working; the development of sites for housing, business opportunities or leisure
activities to encourage economic growth and a healthy and more active population;
and the further development of the tourism offer through our heritage assets and
partnership approach.”

2.3

Subsequently, during the 2018/19 budget-setting process, two of the Council’s policy
Committees proposed the following indicative allocations from the City Plan Fund for
the development of projects to support the above aims:

Page 2

Committee
Planning and Economic
Development

Planning and Economic
Development
Communities

Indicative Purpose
allocation
(£000)
500
To support housing initiatives other than social
housing including:
- Helping people onto the housing ladder
- purchasing vacant and redundant buildings
to return them into use
the establishment of a Housing Development
Company
100
To support business development initiatives
500

To increase capacity to provide housing for
vulnerable tenants through a suitable model
such as:
- dispersed family units
- design & build schemes
- a joint venture with a provider

2.4

The indicative allocations were designed as start-up funding or pump priming funds
to unlock potential developments, not primarily as investment funds for the purposes
of generating returns. More substantial capital sums will be needed to invest in
property development in support of these intentions and this is likely to include
raising capital finance through borrowing.

2.5

At its meeting of 30 July 2018 the Committee approved a report on Property
Development Funding. This establishes the basis for accessing such funds and sets
out the decision-making process in relation to the property development projects, as
envisaged by the October 2016 report.

2.6

The Committee agreed a capital limit of £20m on the fund. This was on the basis
that as part of the Transformation Programme and Medium Term Financial Strategy,
the Council has identified a need to secure income from such investments of
£100,000 in 2020/21 and a further £100,000 in 2021/22. In simple terms, on the
basis of a 1% annual yield, net of all up-front, borrowing and lifecycle costs, this
would require investment of £20m.

2.7

Following negotiations with property agents, two potential schemes have been
considered and these are subject to separate reports on the agenda. The total value
of these schemes, including purchasing costs, would be in excess of the
Development Fund limit.

2.8

Further opportunities for property development are under consideration.
Consequently the Council’s Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit for debt,
which are indicators required under the CIPFA Prudential Code on Capital Accounting,
have been revised. The revised limits were approved by Full Council on 19 February
and include sufficient room to borrow to meet all known schemes under
consideration. The revised limits are as follows:

Page 3

Authorised limit
Operational boundary

2018/19
limit
£m
32.4

2019/20
limit
£m
51

2020/21
limit
£m
55

2021/22
limit
£m
57

26.8

44

48

49

2.9

In light of this analysis, and in line with the revised borrowing limits, it is proposed to
increase the limit on the Development Fund to £30m.

3.

Preferred Option

3.1

To revise the overall limit on the Property Development Fund to £30m and to
undertake borrowing for property development purposes where this is considered to
be the most effective means of financing proposed schemes.

4.

Alternative Options Considered

4.1

To not increase the headroom for borrowing. This would require the Council to work
within existing borrowing limits and to use revenue contributions, capital receipts
and other sources of funding for investment in property development. Evidence
from proposals received to date suggests that these sources alone would not be
sufficient to undertake the level of investment required to meet the aims of the City
Plan, the October 2016 Cabinet report and the Commercial Strategy.

5.

Implications

5.1

Financial and Budgetary Implications
These are set out in the report. More detailed financial implications would be brought
forward for consideration as part of the two-stage decision process set out in the
report. Individual decisions would need to be considered by the Committee and/or
the Income Generation Sub-committee as required.

5.2

Legal and Governance Implications
The Council has a power of general competence under s1-4 Localism Act 2011 to do
anything an individual can do, subject to any statutory prohibitions which may be in
place. There is currently no prohibition on the Council’s ability to borrow for the
purpose of income generation, property investment and potential development, as
described in this report. Any decisions to increase borrowing and make investments
must be compatible with the Council’s general fiduciary duties in respect of the
stewardship of public funds, and specifically the Council must have regard to the
Prudential Code and Treasury Management Limits, issued periodically by CIPFA.
The revised Prudential Code and Treasury Management Limits have been taken into
account in developing a Capital Strategy during 2018/19 and in reviewing the
operation of the Development Fund. The Council has also considered revised
guidance by CIPFA and the MHCLG relating to capital investment decision-making
and Minimum Revenue Provision. The proposals in the report are in line with this
current guidance and approved Council policies and strategies.

Page 4

In the event that Government requirements on local government borrowing were to
change in the future, this would feed through into the terms on which Public Works
Loan Board borrowing could be drawn down. Therefore on a scheme by scheme
basis, as part of the business case for any acquisition, the Council will be able assess
the availability of borrowing and the terms on which it can be made.
5.3

Risk Implications
The Corporate Risk Register includes two relevant risks:
•

Insufficient resources and skills gap to deliver City Plan Priorities.

•

Macro-economic financial crisis that impacts on the Council's investment
portfolio.

One of the intentions of the report is to ensure that where the Council undertakes
development initiatives which include the purchase of assets, income should be
derived form the assets, either as revenue streams or as capital receipts such that
there is no negative impact on the Council’s ability to deliver the City Plan. Increased
reliance on income from such sources, however, increases the risk that macroeconomic changes may affect the Council’s capacity to deliver services. This needs to
be mitigated by continuing to deploy a range of solutions for balancing the Council’s
income and expenditure, including efficiencies, budget savings and reliance on
income from other sources. Increasing engagement in the City Centre may, on the
other hand, help to secure the City as an attractive place to invest and thereby
increase income from business rates and Council Tax.
Nevertheless, the overall limit on the Development Fund is a key measure of risk for
the Council in relation to investment in property development. It is therefore
essential that the rationale for any changes to the limit is clear and that the limit
remains subject to approval by the Policy and Resources Committee. Other key
indicators of the effective management of risk in relation to property development
will be reported to Committee and Full Council under the requirements of the Capital
and Investment Strategies, agreed by Council in February 2019.
5.4

Corporate/Policy Implications
The proposals are designed to support the delivery of the City Plan as part of the
strategies set out in the Cabinet report of October 2016, the Commercial Strategy
and the 2018/19 budget.

5.5

Equality Implications
Investment in property development is part of a strategy to increase capacity within
the city to meet the needs of those who are potentially homeless, residents seeking
access to housing across the private and public sectors and businesses seeking
development capacity. The aims of the proposal are to support these specific groups,
although investment in the city has the effect of improving wellbeing of all residents.

5.6

Human Resources Implications
None directly arising from this report.

5.7

Health and Safety Implications
None directly arising from this report.

Page 5

5.8

Social, Economic and Environmental implications
Investment in property development is part of a strategy to increase capacity within
the city to meet the needs of those who are potentially homeless, residents seeking
access to housing across the private and public sectors and businesses seeking
development capacity. The proposal in the report will increase the Council’s capacity
to take advantage of opportunities to promote development in support of these
groups and in support of its wider objectives through the City Plan and Masterplan.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All wards
Shane Flynn. Tel: 01905 722536; e-mail:
shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 25
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 55
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3

This page is intentionally left blank

